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PROVING THE STORIES – TRUE OR FALSE                                  
by Debbi Korman 

A recent article on Ancestry.com included three valuable reminders about how to 
research the veracity of family stories which might be linked to historical events. I 
applied these hints to my search for 
information about “Uncle Eddie”.  

I didn’t know that Uncle Eddie existed 
until I saw the obituary for my great 
grandfather’s brother, Hermann 
Lefkovits, who lived in McKeesport, 
PA. Eliasz (Edward) Lefkovics, who 
lived in Homestead, PA, another little 
mill town near McKeesport. 

I knew that Hermann had two 
daughters, Gizella Samburg and Lena 
Judkovits. My grandfather would visit 
them and I have a photo of them. But, 
nobody ever bothered to mention that 
there also was a brother, Edward.  

Upon discovery of that obituary, I 
asked my mother’s cousin Orville Lefko, a Samburg descendant, if he had ever 
heard of Edward. The reply – oh yes, Uncle Eddie. I think he served in the 
Spanish American War. 

Step 1: Recap the details  
Ancestry.com’s hint - start with the story itself. Listen and ask questions as 
different family members tell the tale. Certain details will be included in 
everyone’s version of the story while inconsistencies might point to valuable 
clues as well. Take notes for review later on. 
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I only had a couple of sources to whom I could turn in order to find about Uncle 
Eddie. One was the Samburg descendant and another was a Judkovitz 
descendant. Not much information was available from them, except that they 
both heard of Uncle Eddie’s military service and one had met Uncle Eddie.  

Step 2: Ask what was really possible 
Ancestry.com’s hint - learn about the history surrounding the event to determine 
what parts of the story could be true.  

I needed a timeline to determine when the Spanish American war was fought in 
order to determine whether Uncle Eddie was old enough to be in the military at 
that time, and if he had even immigrated to the US from Hungary in time to fight 
in that war. I also needed to learn something about that military conflict.   

Searching for Edward Lefkovitz, as he was identified in the obituary, was a total 
bust. However, I finally located Hermann’s petition for naturalization, which listed 
his three children and their birthdates. From that document I learned that Edward 
Lefkovitz went by the name Eliasz Lefkovics and was born in 1878. The Spanish 
American War started in 1898, so Uncle Eddie had been old enough to have 
fought in that war.   

But wait - there was more on Hermann’s petition for naturalization. It said that 
Eliasz was in the Philippines, in the military. What did that mean in relation to the 
Spanish American War? At that time, both Cuba and the Philippines were 
possessions of Spain but I didn’t think of the Philippines in connection with Teddy 
Roosevelt and the Rough Riders charging up San Juan Hill.  It appears that there 
were two related wars, one fought right after the other.  

From my research, I learned that the Spanish American War was very brief and 
ended with the Treaty of Paris, which was signed on December 10, 1898. That 
treaty ceded control over the Philippines to the US, an event which was not 
popular with the Filipino insurgents who had been fighting Spain for 
independence. The Filipino revolutionaries turned their attention to the US 
military and armed conflict broke out. The Philippines-American war lasted from 
1899 to 1902.  

Step 3: Focus on what you can prove 
Ancestry.com hint - think about what details are likely to have created a record 
trail. Then start searching for records that might confirm the details.  

Once I figured out Uncle Eddie’s real name, Ancestry.com searches of variant 
spellings of that name yielded a lot of information. Uncle Eddie’s veteran’s 
compensation application submitted in 1934 stated that he enlisted in the Navy in 
December, 1898, just 10 days after the signing of the Treaty of Paris, and that he 
fought in the Philippines from February 23, 1899 until November 20, 1901. He 
was not wounded. He was discharged at Angel Island, San Francisco, on 
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December 19, 1901. Also, he is listed in the 1900 US Census as living in 
Malacanan, Manila, a member of the 20th naval regiment, Infantry, Company H. 
Newspaper articles describe the battles in which his regiment fought. 

So, the story passed down about Uncle Eddie was partially true. He didn’t fight in 
the Spanish American war – it was over before he enlisted. But he did fight in the 
Philippine-American war which started as an insurrection against the USA’s 
annexation of the Philippines via the treaty which had ended the Spanish 
American War.  

The photograph with this story is of my 5’5” Hungarian immigrant relative, Eliasz 
Lefkovics. I don’t know when it was taken, but he appears to be wearing his 
military hat and maybe posing with the rifle he used while in the Philippines. I 
never would have guessed in a million years that our family had a connection to 
this particular conflict!! 

UNITED KINGDOM ON LINE RESOURCES 

Jews have a long history in the 
British Isles.  They were first 
documented as living in England in 
1070, but they were present in 
England as early as Roman times. 
The history of Jews in the British 
Isles is too complex to be discussed 
here in any detail.  Suffice it to say 
that the Jews were expelled in 1290, 
and began to return, permanently, in 
the 1650s. Many immigrants from 
other parts of Europe in the 1800s 
and 1900s came to live in the British 
Isles, or just passed through on the 
way to the US, Canada, South 
Africa, and other destinations.  

 
Former Manchester Synagogue   

Mark Nicholls’ UK Resources 
List 
 
In April, Mark Nicholls from the 
Jewish Genealogy Society of Great 
Britain was JGSO’s guest speaker. 
His topic related to finding ancestors 
in the United Kingdom. His 
presentation focused on how 
immigrants often used England, 
Scotland or Ireland as a stopping 
point on their way to another country. 
Some of those immigrants stayed in 
the UK. But even the ones who just 
passed through often left a paper 
trail, other than a ship manifest, in 
the UK.  
 
One example of that paper trail is 
registers from the Poor Jews 
Temporary Shelter, where many 
immigrants stayed while waiting for 
the next leg of their voyage. Some 
immigrants may have left birth, 
marriage or death records.  
 
Listed below are some of the 
websites which are useful in 
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documenting the immigrants who 
spent only a short time in the British 
Isles, as well as those who stayed. 
Some of the websites are paid sites 
and others are free to use.  The 
websites were included in the 
program handouts, which Mr. 
Nicholls kindly agreed to allow us to 
reprint:  
 
FreeBMD   
http://freebmd.rootsweb.com 
 
Scotland’s People   
http://www.scotlandspeople.gov.uk/ 
 
FreeCEN  
http://freecen.rootsweb.com/ 
 
United Synagogue Marriage 
Authorisations 
http://www.theus.org.uk/support_ser
vices/find_your_family/ 
 
Jewish Genealogical Society of 
Great Britain- www.jgsgb.org.uk/ 
 
The Jewish Chronicle  
http://www.thejc.com/ 
 
Poor Jews Temporary Shelter 
http://chrysalis.its.uct.ac.za/shelter/s
helter.htm 
 
British Jewry  http://www.british-
jewry.org.uk 
 
Synagogue Scribes 
http://synagoguescribes.com/blog 
 
Scottish Jewish Archives Centre  
http://www.sjac.org.uk/ 
 
The Jewish Historical Society of 
England  http://www.jhse.org 
 

 
The National Archives: Looking 
for a Person                         
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/r
ecords/looking-for-
person/default.htm 
 
Moving Here  
http://www.movinghere.org.uk/ 
 
 

 
Poor Jews Temporary Shelter 
 
 
London Metropolitan Archives 
http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/Corp
oration/LGNL_Services/Leisure_and
_culture/Records_and_archives/ 
 
Manchester Library Jewish  
Records 
www.manchester.gov.uk/info/448/arc
hives_and_local_studies/4670/our_c
ollections/16 
 
 

http://freebmd.rootsweb.com/
http://www.scotlandspeople.gov.uk/
http://freecen.rootsweb.com/
http://www.theus.org.uk/support_services/find_your_family/
http://www.theus.org.uk/support_services/find_your_family/
http://www.jgsgb.org.uk/
http://www.thejc.com/
http://chrysalis.its.uct.ac.za/shelter/shelter.htm
http://chrysalis.its.uct.ac.za/shelter/shelter.htm
http://www.british-jewry.org.uk/
http://www.british-jewry.org.uk/
http://synagoguescribes.com/blog
http://www.sjac.org.uk/
http://www.jhse.org/
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/records/looking-for-person/default.htm
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/records/looking-for-person/default.htm
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/records/looking-for-person/default.htm
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/records/looking-for-person/default.htm
http://www.movinghere.org.uk/
http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/Corporation/LGNL_Services/Leisure_and_culture/Records_and_archives/
http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/Corporation/LGNL_Services/Leisure_and_culture/Records_and_archives/
http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/Corporation/LGNL_Services/Leisure_and_culture/Records_and_archives/
http://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/448/archives_and_local_studies/4670/our_collections/16
http://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/448/archives_and_local_studies/4670/our_collections/16
http://www.manchester.gov.uk/info/448/archives_and_local_studies/4670/our_collections/16
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Probate Records and Family 
History  
http://www.justice.gov.uk/guidance/c
ourts-and-
tribunals/courts/probate/family-
history.htm 
 
Ancestry.co.uk 
http://www.ancestry.co.uk  
 
Find My Past 
http://www.findmypast.co.uk  
 
The Genealogist 
www.thegenealogist.co.uk 
 
 

 
Interior of Bevis Marks Synagogue 
[Photo from Jewish Virtual Library] 
 
 
 
 

London Resources 
 
An article in a recent edition of Nu?  
What’s New? Cited a list of many 
internet resources for London 
research, which list had been 
previously published in the Jewish 
Genealogy Society of Long Island 
newsletter. Here are some of the 
websites on this list:   
 
Application for a probate search 
http://hmctsformfinder.justice.gov.uk/
courtfinder/forms/pa1s-eng.pdf  
 
The Association of Jewish 
Refugees 
http://www.ajr.org.uk/ 
http://www.ajr.org.uk/pdfjournals 
(archive of journals, 1946-present) 
 
Federation of Synagogues 
http://www.federationofsynagogues.com 

 
General Register Office 
http://www.gro.gov.uk/gro/content/ 
 
IAJGS Jewish Cemetery Project - 
London England 
http://www.iajgsjewishcemeteryproje
ct.org/london/index.html  
 
London Gazette http://www.london-
gazette.co.uk/ 
 
United Synagogue Burials 
(Orthodox) 
http://www.theus.org.uk/support_ser
vices/find_your_family/burial_records  
 
Western Marble Arch Synagogue* 
http://www.marblearch.org.uk/ 
[Merged with Western and West End 
Great Synagogues and has their 
burial registers.] 
 

http://www.justice.gov.uk/guidance/courts-and-tribunals/courts/probate/family-history.htm
http://www.justice.gov.uk/guidance/courts-and-tribunals/courts/probate/family-history.htm
http://www.justice.gov.uk/guidance/courts-and-tribunals/courts/probate/family-history.htm
http://www.justice.gov.uk/guidance/courts-and-tribunals/courts/probate/family-history.htm
http://www.ancestry.co.uk/
http://www.findmypast.co.uk/
http://www.thegenealogist.co.uk/
http://hmctsformfinder.justice.gov.uk/courtfinder/forms/pa1s-eng.pdf
http://hmctsformfinder.justice.gov.uk/courtfinder/forms/pa1s-eng.pdf
http://www.ajr.org.uk/
http://www.ajr.org.uk/pdfjournals
http://www.federationofsynagogues.com/
http://www.gro.gov.uk/gro/content/
http://www.iajgsjewishcemeteryproject.org/london/index.html
http://www.iajgsjewishcemeteryproject.org/london/index.html
http://www.london-gazette.co.uk/
http://www.london-gazette.co.uk/
http://www.theus.org.uk/support_services/find_your_family/burial_records
http://www.theus.org.uk/support_services/find_your_family/burial_records
http://www.marblearch.org.uk/
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Quick bytes 

 

Leo Baeck Institute 
Digital Archives 

Abstracted from a post on 
JewishGen 
 
Leo Baeck Institute in New York 
 http://www.lbi.org/digibaeck/ has 
digitized many of its records and  
collections on German Jews.  Now 
available on line is the entire Rudolf 
Jakob Simonis Collection, which 
includes  "genealogical notes for four 
hundred Jewish families from 
Sweden, Berlin, and northern 
Germany, covering the period from 
the sixteenth through the twentieth 
century".  
 

1890 KRAKOW Census                                                                                                                                                         
from a post on JewishGen 

The Krakow Census of 1890 is now 
viewable online for free, with a 
(handwritten) name index, thanks to 
the Malopolska Digital Library.           
  
Instructions for how to find people by 
name in the census, use the index, 
and save census images to your 
computer  at are posted at:  
http://genealogyindexer.org/forum/viewt

opic.php?t=3017     

 

ONLINE GERMAN RECORDS                                                                                             
from Nu? What’s New?  

Ralph Baer, on the German-SIG 
Discussion Group of JewishGen, 
reports that the birth, marriage, and 
death records from about 1810 to 
1870, which are located at the 
Generallandesarchiv Karlsruhe, are 
online at https://www2.landesarchiv-
bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand
=12390. They cover the northern 
portion of Baden.  

Records for southern Baden at the 
Staatsarchiv Freiburg are at 
https://www2.landesarchiv-
bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand
=10028. The Reichssappenamt 
records for what is now Baden-
Wuerttemberg located at the 
Hauptstaatsarchiv Stuttgart can be 
found at https://www2.landesarchiv-
bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand
=5632.  

 

SOUTH AFRICAN RECORDS                                                                                                    
from Nu? What’s New? 

Saul Issroff, on the South Africa SIG 
Discussion Group of JewishGen, 
reports that FamilySearch has added 
two million browseable images of  
the Cape Province, Civil Deaths, 
1895–1975. They can be found at 
http://tinyurl.com/CapetownRecords. 
He also reports that eGSSA, the 
virtual branch of the Genealogical 
Society of South Africa has updated 
its passenger list project to include 
the Natal Immigration Board's list of 
immigrants 1850 to 1904, as well as 
the passenger lists from the 
departure notices in the British Mail 
1879 to 1881. The database includes 

http://www.lbi.org/digibaeck/
http://genealogyindexer.org/forum/viewtopic.php?t=3017
http://genealogyindexer.org/forum/viewtopic.php?t=3017
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=12390
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=12390
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=12390
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=10028
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=10028
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=10028
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=5632
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=5632
https://www2.landesarchiv-bw.de/ofs21/olf/struktur.php?bestand=5632
http://tinyurl.com/CapetownRecords


 7 

details of 27,000 passengers and 
800 voyages. It is located at 
http://tinyurl.com/EGGSA 

870,000 PHOTOS OF NEW YORK                                                                                                                           
from a post on JewishGen 

The New York City Department of 
Records has posted 870,000 
photographs on-line.  These 
photographs were culled from the 
Municipal Archives collection of more 
than 2.2 million images going back to 
the mid-1800s. Some of the images 
have appeared in publications but 
most were accessible only by visiting 
the archive offices in lower 
Manhattan over the past few years.  

The collection features more than 
800,000 color photographs taken 
with 35mm cameras of every city 
building in the mid-1980s to update 
the municipal records, and includes 
more than 1,300 rarely seen images 
taken by local photographers of the 
Depression-era Works Progress 
Administration.  The collection may 
be searched by street.  

The website for the NY City 
Department of Records is:  
http://tinyurl.com/7mh83n2 
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html
/gallery/home.shtml 
and an alternative link is:  
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html
/misc/luna.shtml 

Australian Newspapers                                                                                      
from Nu? What’s New? 

TROVE, the search engine of the 
National Library of Australia, 

currently has digitized images of 234 
Australian newspapers and 
magazines online with a full-word 
search engine. It is located at 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper. 
TROVE allows searching for any 
item in the National Library. Results 
are broken up into the following 
categories book; pictures, photos or 
objects; journals, articles or data 
sets; digitized newspapers; music, 
sound or video; maps; diaries, letters 
and archives; or people or 
organizations that include the search 
argument. Examining a result 
indicates whether it is available 
online, in particular libraries or it is 
possible to purchase a copy. 
 

NEW LOOK AND FEATURES FOR 
CENTRAL DATABASE OF SHOAH 
VICTIMS’ NAMES                                                    
Abstracted from Nu? What’s New  

Yad Vashem’s Central Database of                                                                                         
Shoah Victims’ Names located at 
http://db.yadvashem.org/names/sear
ch.html?language=en has a new 
look. Additional features of value to 
genealogists include: 

   • Ability to limit searches to recent 
submissions (updates since) or even 
older submissions (updates until). 
                                                          
 • Now 50 results are displayed at a 
time requiring less time to browse a 
large number of results. Previously 
only 15 results were shown at a time. 
                                                          
 • Search only Pages of Testimony or 
only Other Material 

http://tinyurl.com/EGGSA
http://tinyurl.com/7mh83n2
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html/gallery/home.shtml
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html/gallery/home.shtml
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html/misc/luna.shtml
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html/misc/luna.shtml
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper
http://db.yadvashem.org/names/search.html?language=en
http://db.yadvashem.org/names/search.html?language=en
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No, Family Names Were Not Changed at Ellis Island                                           
from Eastman’s Online Genealogy Newsletter 

 

There is a family myth amongst tens of thousands of American families: "The 
name was changed at Ellis Island." The stories claim the immigrant arrived at 
Ellis Island and was unable to communicate with the officials. A record was then 
created by someone who assigns the immigrant a descriptive name.  
 
This fairy tale refuses to die. Let's look at a few simple facts: 

1. Passenger lists were not created at Ellis Island. They were created abroad, 
beginning close to the immigrant's home, when the immigrant purchased his 
ticket. In 99% of the cases, the clerk filling out the forms and creating the 
passenger list in "the old country" knew how to speak, read, and write your 
ancestor's language. That clerk filled in the proper name. In the case of Eastern 
European or Oriental languages, those forms even included the correct non-
Roman characters. To be sure, spelling variations were common as the 
immigrants usually were illiterate and often didn't know their own alphabets or 
how to spell their own names. The clerks wrote what they heard, which may or 
may not be the same spelling used elsewhere. In fact, there might not be a 
"correct" spelling. However, what was recorded ALWAYS sounded correct, 
especially when pronounced in the immigrant's language. 
 
It is unlikely that anyone at the local steamship office in "the old country" was 
unable to communicate with the immigrant or his/her family. Names were most 
likely recorded with a high degree of accuracy at that time. Those lists of names 
were later delivered to immigration officials at Ellis Island. 
 
2. The idea that the immigrant was unable to communicate with officials at Ellis 
Island is ludicrous. In fact, one third of all immigrant inspectors at Ellis Island in 
the early twentieth century were themselves foreign-born, and all immigrant 
inspectors spoke at least three languages. In addition, Ellis Island and other ports 
of entry also hired an army of interpreters, most of them as part-time employees. 
These interpreters always (repeat: ALWAYS) could speak, read, and write the 
languages of other immigrants. If a new immigrant arrived and no interpreter was 
available for his or her particular language, that immigrant was detained at Ellis 
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Island until a qualified interpreter was located and brought in for the interview. 
Most immigrants were processed through Ellis Island within a day or two but 
there were cases where immigrants were detained for several days until an 
interpreter became available and proper documentation could be completed. 
Nobody passed through the process without being interviewed by someone in a 
suitable language. 
 
3. The passenger lists were always prepared in "the old country" by steamship 
company officials. If any immigrant arrived at Ellis Island and provided a different 
name to officials, he or she was always denied entry. If a brief investigation could 
not clear up the mystery, the immigrant was shipped back to the old country on 
the steamship's return trip. NOTE: Many immigrants were refused entry for a 
variety of reasons and were returned. Estimates seem to vary from 12% to 18% 
of all would-be immigrants were denied entry into the United States and instead 
were sent back to their originating countries. The fates of most of these returnees 
has not been well documented. 
 
4. Later immigrants had to verify their correct names every year. Starting in July 
of 1940, the Alien Registration Act required every alien resident in the United 
States to register at their local Post Office in January. As part of the registration 
process, the immigrant had to provide ALL names by which he or she had ever 
been known, including his or her full name as used in "the old country" as well as 
the name used currently. Alien Registration requirements applied to all aliens 
over the age of fourteen, regardless of nationality and regardless of immigration 
status. 

Despite these facts, the Ellis Island name-change story (or Castle Garden, or 
earlier versions of the same story) is as American as apple pie. However, there is 
little to no truth to these stories. 
 
When Did the Names Change? 
 
After processing through Ellis Island and settling within the United States, many 
immigrants DID change their names. In numerous cases, the names were 
changed for them by public officials, schoolteachers, shopkeepers, and 
neighbors. Anyone from Eastern Europe, with a name LONG on consonants and 
short on vowels, learned that his name often got in the way of a job interview or 
became the subject of ridicule at his child's school. Any change that might 
smooth their way to the American dream was seen as a step in the right 
direction. In many cases, these later name changes were made without court 
papers or any other official recognition. 
 
In any case, the records at Ellis Island and other ports of entry always contained 
the original names, although with frequent spelling variations. 
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GHETTO ENCYCLOPEDIA                                                                                                                                             
from a post on JewishGen 

The Encyclopedia of Camps and Ghettos 1933-1945 Volume II (parts A, B) was  
recently published by the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum.  The book 
covers 200 more ghettos than previously believed existed.  This is part of a long-
term effort to document every site of organized Nazi persecution. Researchers 
and writers scoured the world to find new witnesses, study archives that opened 
after the fall of Communism and survivors texts and testimonies. Holocaust 
scholar Laurence Langer notes more Jews died during World War II in Poland 
and the western Soviet Union - today's Ukraine, Belarus and Lithuania - than the 
estimated one million gassed in Auschwitz. This new volume  covers ghettos 
from Moscow to today's German border, and St. Petersburg to Yalta, in Ukraine. 
There is also a 40 page names index of approximately 8,000 names indexed 
alphabetically by family name. 

The first volume (parts A,B) was published several years ago and the rest of 
seven volume is expected to be completed in the next decade tracking more than 
20,000 sites of wartime persecution of both Jews and non-Jews.   

LITHUANIAN HOLOCAUST ATLAS                                                                 
from Nu? What’s New? 

Lithuanian Holocaust Atlas, located at http://holocaustatlas.lt/EN/, is a website 
where there is information about mass murder sites of Jews throughout 
Lithuania. In early February, Lithuanian Holocaust Atlas was released in book 
form. It describes 227 sites of the extermination of Lithuanian Jews during the 
Holocaust. The book is available in English and Lithuanian and is part of a 
project launched in 2010 by the Vilna Gaon Jewish State Museum in Vilnius and 
the Austrian Verein Gedenkdienst organization. Under this project, workers at the 
Vilnius museum and Austrian volunteers visited Jewish extermination sites to 
take photos and collect information in archives and local offices. The online 
version of the Atlas was launched last year.  
 
The Lithuanian Holocaust Atlas claims it is the only chronicle of these historical 
events, comprising a register of victims, details of the mass murders and proof of 
the names of the perpetrators of the executions. Nowadays, the entrance to 
these memorial sites is often times hindered because some are located outside 
of cities and towns, far away from main roads and/or hidden in forests. The 
Lithuanian Holocaust Atlas may therefore serve as a guide book with detailed 
maps and transportation guidelines. Photographs of monuments and memorial 
boulders that have been placed at execution sites also provide a great source of 
information. 
 
Additional information about the project is available at 
http://www.shtetl.lt/m/en/news/2301/. 

http://holocaustatlas.lt/EN/
http://www.jmuseum.lt/index.aspx
http://www.gedenkdienst.at/
http://www.shtetl.lt/m/en/news/2301/
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RESEARCH TIP 

Do not forget about Logan 
Kleinwaks' Genealogy Indexer 
www.GenealogyIndexer.org. This is 
a truly awesome website which is 
constantly being updated. 

Included are city directories from the 
1800s and 1900s; early telephone 
books, business directories; school 
records; yizkor books, community 
and personal histories; military 
information and much more for 
multiple countries and cities. A few 
examples are the 1844 Hungary and 
Transylvania Business Directory; the 
Carpathian Ruthenian business 
directories for several years in the 
1930s; 1845 Greece, Turkey, Asia, 
Africa and Australia Business 
Directory; and multiple resources for 
pre-war Poland. 

WELCOME TO OUR NEW 
MEMBERS! 

Dr. Lee and Sharon Cordova 
Dale and Elsie Deatherage          
Mary L. McGrath 
Carol Castleman 
Paul Lichtman 
Ted Rubenstein 
Dr. Wayne Werbel 
Michael and Barbara Titelbaum 
Philip Mandel 
Carol and Sy Chestler 
Flori Hall 
Diane Ring 
Julie D. Welch 
Larry Kanner and Sally Angaran 
Alvin and Sharon Segal 

 

Jewish Genealogical Society 
of Oregon (JGSO) 

JGSOregon@gmail.com 
 

Membership is open to all, 
regardless of religious background or 
level of experience. Members range 
from those just starting in genealogy 

to long-time family researchers. 
Membership is for the calendar year. 
 

Send checks to: 
 

Jewish Genealogical Society of 
Oregon 

PO Box 19736 
Portland, Oregon 97280 

 
Yearly dues 

$23 for individuals 
$30 for family 
$10 student 

 
Membership benefits include a free 
copy of Getting Started in Jewish 

Genealogy: A Handbook for Beginners 
Quarterly newsletter Shalshelet 

Meeting notices 
Monthly meetings Sept-June. 

Access to JGSO reference library 
with checkout privileges. 

 
JGSO BOARD 

 
Barbara Hershey, President  
Golda Edwards, 1

st 
 VP 

Joe Mayer, 2
nd

 VP 
Randi Markiz,– Treasurer 
Debbi Korman, Secretary 
Toby Blake, Membership  
Nadene Goldfoot, Publicity  
Barbara Hershey, Programs  
Debbi Korman, Newsletter 
Ron Doctor, Member at Large 

 

 
 

http://www.genealogyindexer.org/
JGSOregon@gmail.com

